
         

 

 

MONTECITO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

BREVARD COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 13, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.montecitocdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

AGENDA 
MONTECITO 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Montecito Beach Club 
208 Montecito Drive 

Satellite Beach, Florida 32937 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

ZOOM LINK: HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/3341025012 
CALL IN: (305) 224 1968 MEETING ID: 334 102 5012 

March 13, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………........Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments From the Public Related to Agenda Items (Limited to 3 Minutes per Person) 

F. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. February 14, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………..............................Page 2 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………Page 9 

2. Receive Public Comments on Amending Amenity Center Rules – Temporary Access 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Amend Amenity Center Rules – Temporary Access………Page 11 

H. Landscape and Irrigation Report 

1. ProGreen………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 23 

I. Old Business 

1. Status of Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) Compliance  

2. Status of Parcel Conveyance – Final 11 Parcels from Montecito CDD Holdings 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-04 – Declaring Surplus – Sportsman Generator…………………Page 25 

2. Coordination with Architectural Review Board – Temporary Access Easements……………….Page 28 

3. Consider Approval of Facility Use Agreement – Montecito Clubhouse…………………………Page 30 

4. Discussion Regarding Mail Kiosk Agreement……………………………………………………Page 45 

5. Discussion Regarding Prior Ticket System……………………………………………………….Page 58 

6. Consider Approval of Paradise Signs Proposal…………………………………………………...Page 59 

7. Consider Resolution 2024-05 – Amending Amenity Center Rules by Replacing the Term 
“Amenity Manager” with “General Manager”……………………………………………………Page 60 
 

8. Discussion of New Landscape Watering – Community Wide – Coordination 

9. Discussion Regarding  Meeting & Agenda Process – Memo Template Use – Post-Meeting 
Action Items 
 

10. Discussion of Budget Meeting Workshop/Planning – Reserve Study & CIP 

11. Consider Approval of the Purchase of 2 Outdoor Weatherproof Bulletin Boards………………..Page 62 



 

K. General Manager’s Report and Related Business Items 

1. General Manager’s Report………………………………………………………………………...Page 64 

2. Homeowner Request 

3. Supervisor Request 

L. Administrative Maters 

1. Legal Report 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Managers Report 

a. Financials………………………………………………………………………………….Page 65 

M. Board Member Requests 

N. Comments From the Audience 

O. Announcement of Next Scheduled Board Meeting 

P. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



Page 1 of 7 
 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
FEBRUARY 14, 2024 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Montecito Community Development District (the “District”) was 
called to order at 9:30 a.m. at 208 Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida 32937.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in Florida Today on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: 
 
Catherine LeCesne, Ed Henson, Tanja Glynn, Richard Wellman, and Eric Smith. 
 
Also in attendance were District Manager Frank Sakuma of Special District Services, Inc.; District 
Manager Stephanie Brown of Special District Services, Inc; Attorney Michael Pawelczyk of Billing, 
Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. (via Zoom); Engineer Stef Matthes of Culpepper & Terpening; 
General Manager Tina Campbell of Vesta Property Services; and Lea Stokes of Vesta Property Services 
(via Zoom). 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Sakuma asked for the following items to be added to the agenda: 
 

- Letter of Authorization for Keys/Locks/Services (Lock Haven-1) 
- Lock Haven-1 Quote – Women & Men Restroom Doors $420 
- Pool Pump Repairs – American Pump $3,360.24 
- Vesta Ticketing System - Discussion 

 
There were no further additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC RELATED TO AGENDA ITEMS 

 
James Bordeau supported the request to waive fees and deposits for community events. He also 
supported the temporary access agreement changes. 
 
Carol Wellman supported the request to waive fees and deposits for community events. 
 
Mark Nehiba supported the request to waive fees and deposits for community events.  
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 7 
 

Betsy Vincent commented on foliage and debris within the community “Verge” area that should be 
addressed. She also asked for the status of the rocks along the Carlsbad fence and suggested researching 
the possibility of having an agreement with Waste Management to get bulk pickup days. 
 
Carolyn Cass supported the request to waive fees and deposits for community events and agreed with 
Ms. Vincent regarding bulk pickup. 
 
Jill Deems asked if the Reserve Study could be posted on the District website. 
 
Patrick Buckley asked what happened to the old refrigerator in the Amenity Center. Ms. Campbell 
responded that it was donated to Goodwill. 
 
Karen Smith supported the temporary access agreement and asked for a status update on the third gate 
along with associated costs. 
 
Ms. LeCesne expressed that she was glad so many residents attended the meeting and stated that 
prioritizing the budget is what would be needed to ensure that other projects could be completed in the 
future. 
 
F.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
  1.  January 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed unanimously approving all 
the items under consent agenda.  
 
G.  LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION REPORTS 
 

1. ProGreen 
 
Mr. Sakuma announced the report was included in the Board package and Rusty Kahue from ProGreen 
was in the audience to answer questions. Mr. Kahue advised about the plan for drench fertilizing for the 
foxtails, that they would be onsite for the following two weeks to evaluate their summer schedule and 
staff training.  Mr. Kahue also stated that a “Yield” sign was hit on the property, and that he would 
attempt to repair the sign and assess for any shrub damage. Mr. Henson asked if palm trees would be 
trimmed prior to hurricane season. Mr. Kahue responded that we would have a schedule by the next 
Board meeting. 
 
The Board considered the following item: 
 

- Clubhouse Hedge Cleanup Proposal 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Henson, seconded by Mr. LeCesne, and passed 
unanimously approving the ProGreen Services proposal for Clubhouse hedge cleanup in the amount of 
$1,500, as presented. 
 
The Board considered the following item: 
 

- Foxtail Palm Tree Drench Treatment 

Page 3



Page 3 of 7 
 

 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Henson, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed 
unanimously authorizing the treatment and fertilization of 13 Foxtail Palm Trees with approved drench, 
in the amount of $975. 
 
H.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Status of Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) Compliance  
 
District Engineer Stef Mathes provided the Board with an update on the CUP compliance. He stated that 
the compliance uploads were completed for the last six months and the District is close to being in 
complete compliance. Mr. Mathes will continue to work with St. Johns River Water Management to 
address reporting compliance. 
 

2. Status of Parcel Conveyances   
 
District Engineer Stef Mathes stated that title paperwork had been received and was in the process of 
being reviewed. Parcels are also being inspected and the infrastructure looks good. 
 

3. Update on No Parking Signs 
 
Mr. Sakuma informed the Board that “No Parking” signs had been installed on the property. Ms. 
Campbell asked the Board for direction on signage or location changes.  Ms. Glynn suggested changing 
the placement of the sign to the light post and that there should be “No Parking” between the signs (front 
beach area). Mr. Henson agreed with Ms. Glynn.  The Board consensus was for staff  to relocate the “No 
Parking” signs to the light posts and to possibly cover one of the arrows on each sign to clearly designate 
the “No Parking” area (with tape or paint). 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Policy for “Resident Only” Social Gathering  
 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Wellman approving the policy for ‘resident only’ 
social gatherings. The motion failed for lack of a second. Ms. Glynn stated that she would be in favor 
of the proposal if it was facilitated through the Master HOA.  Mr. Smith agreed with Ms. Glynn.  Ms. 
LeCesne was in favor of maintaining the security deposit rental requirement. 
 

2. Discussion Regarding Resolution Adopting a Rule Pertaining to Temporary Access 
Over and Through District Properties 

 
District Counsel Michael Pawelczyk stated that they were preparing for the Public Hearing that will be 
held in March. Ms. Glynn suggested making additional changes to verbiage within the rules and 
removing the fob replacement fee amount. Mr. Pawelczyk responded that any changes would have to be 
advertised, so any new changes would need to be made separate from the March 13, 2024, Public Hearing 
and Board Meeting.  He also suggested for the Board, General Manager and District Manager to review 
the policy and schedule it on a meeting six months out to offer the Board recommended changes/updates. 
 
 
 

Page 4



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a New Reservation Form 

 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution 2024-02 entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AMENDING THE ADOPTED RULES, POLICIES, AND FEES FOR 
THE MONTECITO AMENITY CENTER TO PROVIDE FOR 
CONDITIONAL TEMPORARY ACCESS OVER DISTRICT 
PROPERTY FOR LIMITED PURPOSES; PROVIDING 
DIRECTION TO DISTRICT COUNSEL AND THE DISTRICT 
MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
  

 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Ms. LeCesne, seconded by Mr. Smith adopting a new 
reservation form. Mr. Henson voiced his concern about allowing residents to decorate the Clubhouse 
and suggested adding the decoration rule onto the reservation form. 
 
After Board discussion Ms. LesCense amended her motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, and passed 
unanimously approving the new reservation form, subject to adding decoration policy language. 
 

4. Consider Approval of Proposal for Amenity Center Door Repairs 
 
Mr. Henson voiced his concern about having to frequently repair the doors. Mr. Sakuma suggested 
reaching out to the vendor and discussing best practices for maintenance moving forward. After Board 
discussion, Mr. Wellman made a motion, seconded by Mr. Henson, and passed unanimously approving 
the proposal for the Amenity Center door repairs in the amount of $750.00. 
 

5. Consider Approval of Proposal for Weatherproof Wall Mounted Exterior Signs 
 
After Board discussion Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by Ms. Glynn, and unanimously passed 
approving the proposal for weatherproof wall mounted exterior signs in the amount of $245.79 plus 
installation and solar lighting not to exceed $350.00. 
 

6. Consider Approval of Proposal for Clubhouse Hedge Cleanup 
 
The Clubhouse hedge cleanup proposal was addressed in the Landscaping & Irrigation Reports section 
of the agenda. 
 

7. Consider Approval of Expired Facility use Agreement with HOAs 
 
After Board discussion, Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, and passed unanimously 
directing the District attorney to create a similar facility use agreement to include verbiage for association 
events. 
 

Page 5



Page 5 of 7 
 

8. Consider Approval of Artesian Well Discharge Header Reconfiguration 
 
After Board discussion, Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed 
unanimously approving the Artesian well discharge header reconfiguration in the amount of $7,332.66. 
 

9. Letter of Authorization for Keys/Locks/Services (Lock Haven-1) 
 
After Board discussion, Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, and passed unanimously 
approving and ratifying the February 7, 2024, letter of authorization giving the District Manager and 
General Manager the authority to request key and lock services from Lock Haven-1. 
 

10. Lock Haven-1 Quote – Women & Men Restroom Doors $420 
 
After Board discussion, Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, and passed unanimously 
approving the Lockhaven proposal to replace the pool deck restroom locks in the amount of $420.00. 
 

11. Pool Pump Repairs – American Pump $3,360.24 
 
This item was provided with a verbal proposal as communicated to the General Manager from the 
vendor, American Pump. Ms. LeCesne inquired about the pool pump maintenance schedule. Ms. 
Campbell responded that she would research and get back to the Board with an answer. After Board 
discussion, Mr. Henson made a motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, and passed unanimously approving the 
replacement of the pool pump by American Pump in the amount of $3,360.24. 
 

12. Vesta Ticketing System 
 
Ms. LeCesne requested a copy from Vesta of the contract between Vesta and the District for the ticketing 
system and voiced her concern regarding the system having less functionality than the previous system, 
specifically the ability to be able to receive notifications without having to be an account administrator. 
Ms. Stokes responded that there currently was no contract in place between Vesta and the District for 
the ticketing system.  Mr. Sakuma asked if Vesta’s ticketing system would be capable of providing more 
functionality.  Ms. Stokes responded that she did not have the answer presently but would get back to 
the Board with that information.  Mr. Smith suggested keeping Mailchimp for mass communications and 
utilizing email for property issues and concerns.  After Board discussion, Mr. Wellman made a motion, 
seconded by Ms. LeCesne, and passed unanimously to discontinue the use of the Vesta ticketing platform 
within the next 30 days. 
 
J. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT AND RELATED BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

1. General Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Campbell highlighted several items covered in the General Manager’s Report and stated that Secure 
Fence was onsite to install the pedestrian gates. Mr. Wellman inquired if the generator owned by the 
CDD, currently in storage, could be donated as surplus. Ms. Campbell responded that she would need to 
have it inspected to see if it was operational. Ms. LeCesne suggested a resolution for the next Board 
meeting to donate the generator as surplus. 
 
 

2. Homeowner Requests  

Page 6



Page 6 of 7 
 

 
a. Reservation Refund: Laura Halsey 

 
After Board discussion, Mr. Wellman made a motion to provide Ms. Halsey with a full refund of the 
$50 reservation fee. The motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
Ms. LeCesne made a motion to provide Ms. Halsey with a partial reservation fee refund of $25. The 
motion failed for lack of a second. 
 

3. Supervisor Requests 
 
There were no Supervisor requests. 
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Legal Report 

Mr. Pawelczyk advised that the legislature had passed a law requiring the filing of “Form 6” for certain 
elected officials, but that does not apply to Montecito Supervisors.  The “Form 1” filing is still required 
and would be completed online effective this year. He also stated that four hours of ethics training was 
now required and must be completed by December 2024. 
 

2. Engineer Report 

Mr. Mathes gave an update on the advisory signs and provided options for the Board to review. After 
Board discussion, there was a consensus to utilize the green “Slow Down Children Playing” sign. 
 

3. Manager Report 

a. Financials 

Mr. Sakuma advised the financial report was included in the Board package. He also notified the Board 
that the western developer adjacent to the District agreed to cover 50% of the rocks installation and 
requested authorization for ProGreen to install once the check had been received.  After Board 
discussion, Mr. Smith made a motion, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, and passed unanimously approving 
authorization for ProGreen to move forward with the rock installation once the check from the western 
developer had been received. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

1. Mr. Smith – Noted the Legislative changes that would apply to 190 Districts, specifically 
term limits and ethics training.  
 
M. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
There were no further comments from the audience. 
 
 
N. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING 
 

Page 7



Page 7 of 7 
 

Mr. Sakuma announced the next scheduled meeting would be held March 13, 2024. Board consensus 
was to hold the Budget Workshop meeting on March 27, 2024, at 9:30 am. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. LeCesne made a motion adjourning the 
meeting at 12:42 p.m., seconded by Mr. Wellman, the meeting adjourned without objection. 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 8



•LocaliQ 
Florida 

GANNETT 
PO Box 631244 Cincinnati, OH 45263-1244 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

Laura Archer 
Montecito Community Development District 
2501 Burns RD# A 
Palm Beach Gardens FL 33410-5207 

STATE OF WISCONSIN, COUNTY OF BROWN 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared, who 
on oath says that he or she is the Legal Advertising 
Representative of the Florida Today, a daily newspaper 
published in Brevard County, Florida; that the attached 
copy of advertisement, being a Legal Ad in the matter of 
Public Notices, was published on the publicly accessible 
website of Brevard County, Florida, or in a newspaper by 
print in the issues of, on: 

02/12/2024 

Affiant further says that the website or newspaper complies 
with all legal requirements for publication in chapter 50, 
Florida Statutes. 
Subscribed and sworn to before me, by the legal clerk, who 
is personally known to me, on 02/12/2024 

Legal Clerk 

Notary, State of WI, County of Brown/ _/ 
-? 'r/') 

My commision expires 
Publication Cost: $178.49 
Order No: 9823624 

Ad#9823624 2/12/2024 
NOTICE OF RULE AMENDMENT 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

In accordance with Chapter 190 and 
Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, the 
Montecito Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby 
gives notice of its intention to 
consider revisions to the District's 
Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees 
for the Montecito Amenity Center 
("Amenity Rules"), including, but 
not limited to, revisions of the 
section of the Amenity Rules enti 
tled, "USE OF DISTRICT PROP 
ERTY" to provide for temporary 
access to residential property 
owners within the District over 
property owned by the District or 
for which the District is responsible 
to maintain. Additionally, the Board 
will consider revisions to the fees 
and deposit amounts for a more effi 
cient and less costly process for 
residents to obtain temporary 
access over and through District 
property, Specific legal authority for 
the rule amendments includes 
Sections 190.035, 190.011(5) and 
120.54 and 120.81, Florida Statutes. A 
copy of the proposed Amenity Rules 
may be obtained by contacting 
Frank Sakuma, District Manager, 
Special District Services, Inc., 10807 
SW Tradition Square, Port St. Lucie, 
Florida 34987, 772-345-5119. A public 
hearing will be conducted by the 
Board of Supervisors of the 
Montecito Community Development 
District on March 13, 2024, at 9:30 
AM at the Montecito Beach Club, 208 
Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, 
Florida 32937. The public hearing 
will provide an opportunity for the 
public to address the proposed 
Amenity Rules changes. The public 
hearing may be continued to a date, 
time, and place to be specified on 
the record at such public hearing. 
Montecito Community Develop- 
ment District 
www .montecitocdd.org 

Customer No: 
PO#: 

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE! 

1137482 
# of Copies: 
1 

Please do not use thisformfor payment remittance. 

KATHLEEN ALLEN 
Notary Public 

State of Wisconsin 

Page 1 of 1 

Page 9



*LocaliQ 
Florida 

GANNETT 
PO Box 631244 Cincinnati, OH 45263-1244 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

Laura Archer 
Montecito Community Development District 
250 I Burns RD # A 
Palm Beach Gardens FL 33410-5207 

STATE OF WISCONSIN, COUNTY OF BROWN 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared, who 
on oath says that he or she is the Legal Advertising 
Representative of the Florida Today, a daily newspaper 
published in Brevard County, Florida; that the attached 
copy of advertisement, being a Legal Ad in the matter of 
Public Notices, was published on the publicly accessible 
website of Brevard County, Florida, or in a newspaper by 
print in the issues of, on: 

02/13/2024 

Affiant further says that the website or newspaper complies 
with all legal requirements for publication in chapter 50, 
Florida Statutes. 
Subscribed and sworn to before me, by the legal clerk, who 
is personally known to me, on 02/13/2024 

My commision expires 
Publication Cost: $275.06 
Order No: 9833665 

NOTICE OF RULEMAKING 
HEARING TO CONSIOER 

AMENOMENTS TO THE RULSE 
OF THE MONTECITO COMMU 

NITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
In accordance with Chapters 120 and 
190, Florida Statutes, the Montecito 
Community Development District 
(the "District") will hold a Public 
Hearing on March 13, 2024 at 9:30 
AM at the Montecito Beach Club, 208 
Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, 
Florida 32937, for the review, ccnsld 
eration and adoption of revisions to 
the District's Adopted Rules, Poli 
cies, and Fees for the Montecito 
Amenity Center ("Amenity Rules"), 
including, but not limited to, revi 
sions of the section of the Rules enti 
tled, "USE OF OISTRICT PROP 
ERTY" to provide for temporary 
access to residential property 
owners within the District over 
property owned by the District or 
for which the District is resoonslble 
to maintain, and to revise the fees 
and deposit amounts. 
The reason for the amendment of 
the above Amenity Rules is to 
provide for efficient and effective 
operations of the District, and to 
provide a more efficient and less 
costly process for residents to obtain 
temporary access over and thru 
District property. seecinc legal 
authority for the Amenity Rules 
includes 190.035, 190.011 (5) and 
120.54 and 120.81, Florida Statutes. 
The public hearing may be contin 
ued to a later date, time and place 
to be specified on the record at the 
hearing. There may be occasions 
when Board members, staff or other 
individuals may participate by 
media communications technology. 
A copy of the proposed Amenity 
Rules of the District may be 
obtained by contacting Fronk 
Sakuma, District Manager, at 
Special District Services, Inc., 10807 
SW Tradition Square, Port Sf. Lucie, 
Florida, during normal business 
hours. In accordance with the provi 
sions of the Americans with Disabili 
ties Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an inter 
preter to participate of these meet 
ings should contact the District 
Manager at (772) 345-5119 and/or toll 
free at 1-877-737-4922, at least forty 
eight (48) hours prior to the meet 
ing. If you are hearing or speech 
impaired, please contact the Florida 
Relay Services 1-800-955-8770, for aid 
in contacting the District Office. 
If cnv person decides to appeal any 
decision mode with respect to any 
matter considered at this meeting, 
such cer scn will need a record of the 
proceedings and such person .may 
need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings Is made at 
their own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence 
on which the appeal is based. 
Meetings may be cancelled from 
time to time without advertised 
notice. 
Montecito Community 
Development District 
PUBLISH: Florida Today (Brevard 
County) 02/13/2024; #9833665 

Customer No: 
PO#: 

1137482 
Rulemaking 3/13/24 

# of Copies: 
1 

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE! 
Please do no/ use this form for payment remittance. 

NANCY HEYRMAN 
Notary Public 

State of Wisconsin Page 1 of 1 

Page 10



1 

RESOLUTION 2024-03 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AMENDING THE ADOPTED RULES, 
POLICIES, AND FEES FOR THE MONTECITO AMENITY 
CENTER TO PROVIDE FOR CONDITIONAL 
TEMPORARY ACCESS OVER DISTRICT PROPERTY 
FOR LIMITED PURPOSES; PROVIDING DIRECTION TO 
DISTRICT COUNSEL AND THE DISTRICT MANAGER; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Montecito Community Development District (hereinafter the "District") 
is a local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes, being situated in the City of Satellite Beach, Brevard County, Florida; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates, an maintains certain lands and recreational 
amenity facilities within the boundaries of the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2015, pursuant to Resolution 2015-05 the District Board of 
Supervisors approved the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center, 
which Rules were subsequently amended on October 29, 2018, pursuant to Resolution 2019-01 
(collectively, the “Rules”), which Rules pertain and govern the use of the District’s lands and 
recreational facilities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 120.54, 120.81, 190.011(5), and 190.035(2), Florida 
Statutes, the District is authorized to adopt and modify rules prescribing the conduct of the 
business of the District, the operation and maintenance of the District lands and facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to prescribe, fix, 
establish, and collect rates, fees and other charges for facilities and services furnished by the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Board desires to amend the section of the Rules entitled, “USE 
OF DISTRICT PROPERTY” to provide for temporary access to residential property owners 
within the District over property owned by the District or for which the District is responsible to 
maintain; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the District Board that the Rules amendments provided for 

herein will replace the use of the Temporary Access Easement instrument previously authorized 
and currently utilized pursuant to Resolution 2023-10, adopted July 12, 2023; and  

 

Page 11



 2

 WHEREAS, the Board finds and determines that these Rules amendments will be a cost 
and time savings for the District and will make it much easier and more efficient for residential 
property owners to secure access over District property interests in order to make improvements 
to their properties where such access is required; and   
 

WHEREAS, the District advertised a public hearing for March 13, 2024, in order to hear 
and receive comments on the proposed changes and additions to the Rules pursuant to the 
requirements of Chapter 120, Florida Statutes; and  

 
WHEREAS, after the duly advertised public hearing held on March 13, 2024 the District 

Board of Supervisors has determined that it is in the best interests of the District and the 
residents of and visitors to the District to adopt the amendments, changes, revisions, additions 
and deletions to the Rules as provided herein, and to incorporate the same into an updated 
version of the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated in and adopted 
as part of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2.  The section of the Rules, entitled “USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY,” is 

amended, as follows: 
 

USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY   
 

(1) No trash, debris, lumber, metals, bulk materials, garbage or other waste 
material or refuse shall be kept, placed, stored and/or allowed to accumulate 
on any part of the District Pproperty, except building material during the 
course of any previously approved residence improvement by the Master 
Homeowners Association, Single Family Homeowners Association and/or 
Townhomes Association, as set forth in the covenants of the respective 
Homeowners Association.  

 
(2) The misuse, disabling, modification, tampering, interference of any 
District property, including, but not limited to irrigation pumps, timers, 
valves, gates, security system, air conditioning system and controls, pool 
pumps and systems, furniture, kitchen equipment, decorations, lighting and 
lighting controls, internet, audio visual equipment, fitness equipment, 
playground facilities, District’s rights-of-way, road verge, District’s 
landscaping, and District’s signage is strictly prohibited.      

 
(3)  Temporary Access for purposes of approved residence improvement.  A 
Property Owner may request permission, for a limited time period, to utilize 
District property for purposes of ingress and egress in order to access the 
residential property of said Property Owner to accommodate the installation or 

Page 12



 3

construction of a residential improvement (i.e. the Property Owner requests 
the use of District property for purposes of ingress and egress in connection 
with the installation of a paver deck in Property Owner’s backyard).  The 
District may grant such permission to the Property Owner under the following 
conditions: 
 
a. Property Owner completes and executes a Montecito CDD Temporary 

Access Request Form and Agreement (the “Request Form”) agreeing to all 
terms of the Request Form, and Property Owner delivers the same with all 
required back-up documentation and information required by this section 
to the District (the Request Form can be obtained from and all submittals 
required by this section shall be made to the General Manager of the 
Montecito Beach Club Amenity Center (the “General Manager”) or to the 
individual otherwise designated by motion of the Board); and 

b. Property Owner has secured and submits to the General Manager written 
approval from the architectural review board (ARB) having jurisdiction 
for the improvements proposed to the real property of Property Owner; 
and 

c. Property Owner provides the General Manager with a detailed description 
of the proposed work to be performed for the improvements, the location 
of the work and improvements, and the estimated time to complete the 
improvements; and 

d. Property Owner provides the General Manager with a detailed sketch or 
drawing (engineering plans or survey is not required) of the location of the 
District property (the “Ingress/Egress Area”) that the Property Owner is 
seeking to utilize for purposes of ingress and egress in order to facilitate 
the improvements proposed to the real property of Property Owner; and  

e. Property Owner provides the General Manager proof of ownership of the 
real property of Property Owner; and  

f. Property Owner pays to the District a non-refundable application fee in the 
amount of $50.00 and a deposit in the amount of $300.00 made payable to 
the Montecito Community Development District.  The deposit will be 
cashed and deposited by the District, and after Property Owner completes 
the improvements that are the subject of the Request Form, the deposit 
shall be returned to the Property Owner minus any costs incurred by the 
District to repair or replace damages to any property or facilities of the 
District arising out of or in any way connected to Property Owner’s use of 
the Ingress/Egress Area or District property. Any damages in excess of the 
deposit amount shall be the responsibility of the Property Owner and shall 
be paid to the District within thirty (30) days of an invoice for the same 
being sent to Property Owner at the address set forth on the Request Form.  
After the subject improvements are completed or the Property Owner 
informs the District that the subject improvements will not be made, the 
District will return the remaining deposit amount within sixty (60) days of 
the Property Owner’s request to the General Manager for an inspection; 
and  

Page 13



 4

g. The Request Form has been executed by the Property Owner, which shall 
include all lawful fee simple owners of the residential property (i.e. if the 
husband and wife are owners pursuant to the deed of ownership, both the 
husband and the wife must sign the Request Form); and   

h. The Ingress/Egress Area shall be no more than ten (10’) wide, unless 
otherwise specified as a special condition by the General Manager on the 
approved Request Form; and  

i. The permission to use the Ingress/Egress Area for purposes of access, 
ingress and egress is limited to one hundred eighty (180) days from the 
date the General Manager executes the Request Form; and 

j. For purposes of this section, the permission to use the Ingress/Egress Area 
is limited to the Property Owner and Property Owner’s agents, assigns, 
employees and independent contractors, for which Property Owner shall 
be fully responsible; and  

k. Property Owner agrees to be responsible for any damages to the 
Ingress/Egress Area and to any District property or facilities arising out of 
the use of Ingress/Egress Area as permitted pursuant to this section; and 

l. Nothing in this section or in the Request Form shall be construed to grant 
Property Owner any permission or authorization to use any portion of 
District property other than the Ingress/Egress Area, and such permission 
does not extend to any other District property, privately owned property, 
or lot of the Property Owner’s neighbors or other owners in the vicinity of 
Property Owner’s property; and 

m. Property Owner shall be responsible for securing all required permits from 
the City of Satellite Beach, the applicable homeowner’s association, or 
any governmental entity having jurisdiction over the improvements 
proposed or made to the property of Property Owner. 

 
(4) Any violation of this section shall invoke the Suspension and Termination 
of Privileges section set forth herein and subject the violator to the imposition of 
costs and administrative fees for the removal of offending items and repairs or 
replacement of any District property damaged.    

  
Section 3. Direction to District Counsel.  District Counsel is directed to incorporate 

the amendments, changes, revisions, additions and deletions provided herein to create an updated 
version of the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center, and to 
circulate the same to the District Manager. 

 
Section 4. Direction to District Manager.  The District Manager is hereby directed to 

take all actions consistent with this Resolution.  The District Manager shall include this adopted 
Resolution as part of the Official Records of Proceeding of the District, distribute the Rules as 
appropriate to affected parties and in accordance with Chapters 120 and 190, Florida Statutes, 
and post the Rules, as updated pursuant to this Resolution, on the District’s website. 

 
Section 5. Conflicts.  All motions, resolutions or parts of motions or resolutions in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.  Specifically, Resolution 

Page 14



 5

2018-04 and Resolution 2023-19, previously adopted by the Board shall be of no further force 
and effect. 
 
 Section 6. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this 
Resolution shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared 
that the remainder of this Resolution would have been adopted despite the invalidity or 
ineffectiveness of such section, paragraph, clause or provision. 
 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED in Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of the 

Montecito Community Development District, this 13th day of March, 2024 (the “Effective 
Date”). 

      MONTECITO COMMUNITY 
Attest:      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

 
              
Frank Sakuma, Secretary   Catherine LeCesne, Chairperson 
      Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Page 15



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

1

MONTECITO CDD 
TEMPORARY ACCESS REQUEST FORM AND AGREEMENT 

 
Property Owner(s): ________________________________________________________ 
 
Property Owner’s property address within CDD:  ________________________________ 
                    Satellite Beach, Florida 32937 
  

Parcel ID (from Brevard County Property Appraiser): ______________________ 
Lot #________, Plat of ________________________ (Plat Book ____, Page___) 
 

Property Owner’s Home Address (if different from above):_________________________ 
       ______________________________ 
       ______________________________ 
 
Proposed improvement(s) to Property Owner property (the “Improvements”): 
 
Describe improvements: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Location of Improvements (i.e. rear yard, side yard):______________________________ 
 
Estimated Completion Date: _________________________________________________ 
 
Special Conditions requested by Property Owner:________________________________ 

(not approved unless identified as part of the approval on page 4 hereof) 
 
Montecito CDD Property (“District Property”) over which Property Owner requests temporary 
access (identify each parcel by Parcel ID and legal description (by Plat), as identified by the 
Brevard County Property Appraiser: 
 

Parcel ID (from Brevard County Property Appraiser): ______________________ 
Tract ________, Plat of ________________________ (Plat Book ____, Page___) 
 

 And 
 

Parcel ID (from Brevard County Property Appraiser): ______________________ 
Tract ________, Plat of ________________________ (Plat Book ____, Page___) 

 
Property Owner to attach detailed sketch/drawing identifying the portion(s) of District Property 
that the Property Owner is requesting access over (the “Ingress/Egress Area”), as limited by the 
Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees of the Montecito Amenity Center. 
 
Property Owner, by executing this Montecito CDD Temporary Access Request Form and 
Agreement (the “Request Form”) hereby consents to, acknowledges, and agrees as follows: 
 

Page 16



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

2

1. Property Owner has read, understands, and hereby agrees to abide by and be 
responsible as provided in the section of the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito 
Amenity Center, entitled “USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY,” a copy of which is attached to and 
made a part of this Request Form as Exhibit A.   

 
2. Upon acceptance of this Request Form by the General Manager of the Montecito 

CDD, the Montecito CDD hereby grants to Property Owner a temporary, non-exclusive 
easement over, upon, under, through, and across the portions of Ingress/Egress Area, as shown in 
the attached sketch/drawing attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit B, for the purpose 
of Property Owner gaining access to the Property Owner’s Property (as described above) for the 
purpose of constructing the Improvements. The Property Owner agrees and acknowledges that, 
while the Montecito CDD believes that it is the lawful owner of or is the responsible 
maintenance entity  of the Ingress/Egress Area, the Montecito CDD has not verified such 
ownership and makes no representations or warranties regarding such ownership.  It shall be the 
Property Owner’s responsibility to confirm property-ownership to ensure that Property Owner is 
not using property over which it has not been granted legal access.  Additionally, Property 
Owner agrees and acknowledges that the Montecito CDD makes no representations or warranties 
that the Ingress/Egress Area is wide enough or suitable for the Property Owner’s needs.  To the 
extent there is any discrepancy in ownership or if the Ingress/Egress Area is not wide or large 
enough or otherwise suitable for the Property Owner’s needs, the Property Owner, on behalf of 
Property Owner and its contractors, agents, employees, and assigns, assumes any and all risk and 
liability associated with trespassing or any other unauthorized use of such property.   Nothing 
herein shall be interpreted or construed to grant any easement or other rights, temporary or 
otherwise, over any property other than the Ingress/Egress Area.  

 
3. Property Owner agrees to indemnify and hold the Montecito CDD, its officers, 

agents, and employees harmless from and against any and all damages, losses or claims, 
including but not limited to legal fees and expenses, to the extent that such damages, losses or 
claims arise out of or are in any way connected with the acts, omissions or negligence in the use 
of the Ingress/Egress Area or other lands or with respect to the installation or construction of the 
Improvements by Property Owner, Property Owner’s agents, employees or independent 
contractors. 

 
4.  In the event that Property Owner, Property Owner’s employees, agents, 

assignees, or contractors (or their subcontractors, employees or materialmen) cause damage to 
the Ingress/Egress Area or any of the improvements or facilities located within the 
Ingress/Egress Area or causes damage to the District Property or the Montecito CDD’s other 
property or any improvements or facilities located thereon, in the exercise of the rights granted 
herein, Property Owner shall be responsible for any and all such damages. Property Owner, at 
Property Owner’s sole cost and expense, agrees to commence and diligently pursue the 
restoration of the same and the improvements so damaged to as nearly as practical to the original 
condition and grade, including, without limitation, repair and replacement of any landscaping, 
hardscaping, plantings, ground cover, irrigation systems, roadways, driveways, sidewalks, 
parking areas, fences, walks, utility lines, stormwater facilities, pumping facilities, pumps and 
other structures, within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of the occurrence of any 
such damage.  Property Owner shall allow no lien to attach to the Ingress/Egress Area or any 

Page 17



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

3

improvements located on said property, the District Property, or the Montecito CDD’s other 
property arising out of work performed by, for, or on behalf of Property Owner.    Property 
Owner shall be fully responsible for any damages to Montecito CDD-owned or private property 
arising out of or in any way connected with Property Owner’s exercise of the rights granted 
herein.  Further, nothing herein shall be construed or interpreted to require the Montecito CDD to 
move or remove any of its facilities, including, but not limited to, irrigation lines, fencing, and 
landscaping, located within the Property Owner’s Property or the District Property.  Property 
Owner shall be responsible and liable for any and all costs associated with the moving, removal, 
or damages to such facilities.  Property Owner understands and acknowledges that Property 
Owner is responsible for the acts, omissions, and negligence of Property Owner’s agents, 
including any contractors or subcontractors performing work or providing services on behalf of 
Property Owner or at the Property Owner’s direction. 

 
5. NOTHING HEREIN PURPORTS TO GRANT PROPERTY OWNER ANY 

PERMISSION OR AUTHORIZATION TO UTILIZE ANY PORTION OF ANY PROPERTY 
OTHER THAN THE INGRESS/EGRESS AREA. THE APPROVAL DOES NOT GRANT 
ANY PERMISSION FOR USE OR ACCESS OVER ANY OTHER PRIVATE LOTS OR 
OTHER PROPERTIES OF THE MONTECITO CDD OR OTHERWISE. PROPERTY OWNER 
SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO SECURE THE PERMISSION OR AUTHORIZATION TO 
UTILIZE ANY SUCH OTHER PROPERTY AS NEEDED. 

 
6. In the event that the Montecito CDD seeks to enforce this Request Form by court 

proceedings or otherwise, then the Montecito CDD, if the prevailing party, shall be entitled to 
recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, 
alternative dispute resolution or appellate proceedings.  Venue for purpose of any litigation or 
other proceedings shall be Brevard County, Florida.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[the remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 

Page 18



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

4

WITH THE SUBMITTAL OF THIS REQUEST FORM to the Montecito CDD, the 
Property Owner consents, acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Request Form and 
the section of the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees of the Montecito Amenity Center, entitled 
“USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY.” 
 
PROPERTY OWNER(s): 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
 
Print name:_______________________  Print name: ________________________ 
 
Date: ___________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
MONTECITO CDD (area below to be completed by the General Manager of the Montecito CDD): 
 
Date initial submittal of Request Form received by General Manager: _______________ 
 
_______ (GM Initial)     Deposit Non-Refundable Application Fee Received 
 
_______ (GM Initial)     Deposit Received 
 
 
_______ (GM Initial)     Proof of Ownership Received 
 
_______ (GM Initial)     ARB Approval Received 
 
_______ (GM Initial)     Sketch/Drawing of Ingress/Egress Area Received 
 
_______ (GM Initial)     Insurance Certificate (Montecito CDD as additional insured) Received 
 
_______ (GM Initial for approval or N/A)     Special Conditions approved  
 

The General Manager of the Montecito Beach Club Amenity Center of the District 
hereby finds that this Request Form is complete and is approved.  Upon execution by the General 
Manager, this shall constitute an agreement between the Montecito CDD and the Property 
Owner.  Temporary access over the Ingress/Egress Area shall expire 180 days from the date of 
approval. 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
       Print name: _______________________ 
         
       Title:____________________________ 
      
       Date Approved: ___________________ 

Page 19



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

5

 
 Upon approval of this Request Form, the General Manager shall transmit the Request Form, all exhibits 
and required back-up documentation thereto to the District Manager of the Montecito CDD. 

Page 20



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

6

 
Exhibit A 

 
Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center 

 
USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 

 
[to be added once adopted] 

 

Page 21



Temporary Access Request Form 
Rev. 12-28-202301-11-2024 

7

 
Exhibit B 

 
Ingress/Egress Area 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
CLASSIFYING CERTAIN TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY 
OF THE DISTRICT, INCLUDING A SPORTSMAN ELECTRIC 
GENERATOR, AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
DISTRICT MANAGER TO SELL OR DISPOSE OF SAID 
PROPERTY AS EXPEDITIOUSLY AS POSSIBLE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 274, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE  
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Montecito Community Development District 

(collectively, the “District”) owns certain tangible personal property, including certain Sportsman electric 

generator, as more fully described in Exhibit “A”, incorporated herein and made a part hereof (the 

“Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, said Property is no longer useful to the District and the continued use of such Property 

is no longer economical or efficient, or said Property no longer serves a useful function; and 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to classify and declare said Property on Exhibit “A” as surplus 

tangible personal property that is obsolete and for which, the continued use of which would be 

uneconomical, inefficient to maintain, or serves no useful function; and 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District Manager to sell or dispose of said 

Property as appropriate and in accordance with Chapter 274, Florida Statutes, governing the disposal of 

surplus tangible personal property by local governments, including special districts; and 

WHEREAS, the District finds it to be in the best interests of the District to dispose of the Property 

in accordance with this Resolution and Chapter 274, Florida Statutes. 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, THAT: 
 
 

 Section 1.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein as if set forth in full 

herein. 

 Section 2.  The District hereby declares the Property as surplus tangible personal property and 

determines that the continued use of such Property is uneconomical, inefficient to maintain, or serves no 

useful function. 

Page 25



Section 3. The District Manager is hereby authorized to take the necessary and appropriate 

steps to sell at auction or dispose as appropriate and in accordance with Chapter 274, Florida Statutes, said 

Property. 

 Section 4. All sections, or parts thereof, which conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such 

conflict, superseded and repealed.  In the event that any portion of this Resolution is found to be 

unconstitutional or improper, it shall be severed herein and shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this Resolution. 

 Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

   

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE MONTECITO 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THIS 13th DAY OF MARCH, 2024. 

 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
    
Frank Sakuma, Secretary  Catherine LeCesne, Chair 
  Board of Supervisors 
   
     

Page 26



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

PROPERTY DECLARED SURPLUS 
 
 
 

Item Brand Model No. Serial No. 
SPORTSMAN GEN Sportsman GEN4000 N25230FW 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



MONTECITO CDD 

 
Date: 2 March 2024 

Subject: Proposal for formal communication between the Montecito Townhomes of 
Brevard Homeowners Association (MTB HOA) Architectural Review Board 
(ARB) Committee and the Montecito Community Development District (CDD) 
Board of Supervisors (BOS) regarding temporary access easement 
applications for homeowner architectural and landscaping projects 

  

  

 

Person Making Request (Board Supervisor, Homeowner, Staff, Vendor): Homeowner - 
James Bourdeau, President Montecito Townhomes of Brevard Homeowners Association 
and member, MTB HOA ARB Committee 

Requested Board Action: approval of a policy by which the MTB HOA ARB Committee 
communicates its requirement of a temporary access easement for approval of 
homeowner improvement projects to the Montecito CDD BOS 

Why Request/Change Required (Background Information): The Goals: 

 Prevent damage to CDD-
architectural and landscaping projects that require traversal of CDD property with 
materials and equipment during the site work 

 Maintain the integrity of the HOA ARB Committee approval process for project 
applications 

The Problem: Some applicants whose projects are approved (by the HOA ARB 
Committee) conditional on obtaining a temporary access easement (TAE) from the CDD 
are not applying for nor obtaining the easement. Cost is frequently cited as a reason for 

not informed by the HOA ARB Committee when a project is approved contingent upon 
obtaining a TAE. Without a documented TAE, the CDD is vulnerable to damage to its 
property without recourse to remedy the injury. Likewise, the HOA ARB Committee is not 
informed by the CDD whether a property owner has applied for and obtained the required 

Page 28



2 

TAE. Thus, it cannot assure that this requirement of the application is being met. This 
gap in knowledge compromises the integrity of the ARB project application process. 

Does this impact Governmental requirements? (If so, explain): No 

What is changing from the baseline or previously approved Board action? 

 Describe old item/process: None 

 Describe new item/process: For every project application whose approval is 
contingent upon obtaining a TAE, the chairperson of the ARB Committee will inform the 
General Manager of the CDD of this fact via e-mail no later than the day following 
approval of the application. The General Manager will maintain a record of all TAE 
applications and their status. Once a TAE has been approved, the General Manager will 
inform the chairperson of the ARB Committee that it is in effect. 

What will this change help save or avoid? 

 With knowledge of ongoing approved architectural projects in the townhomes 
community that require TAEs, the CDD can monitor for damage to its property (both 
during and at the completion of the site work) and identify the party needing to remedy 
any harm. 

 The ARB Committee will have the knowledge necessary to document whether 
applicants have followed through with the TAE requirement and will take this into 
consideration for future applications. 

 
and the HOA ARB Committee will follow up on the homeowner's adherence to the details 
of the architectural project application. 

COST: 

 Non-Recurring Cost/Expenses (one time): None 

 Recurring Cost (ongoing/maintenance/etc.): The time for the General Manager of 
the CDD to enter the information received from the HOA ARB Committee and to maintain 
and, as necessary, share records pertaining to same. 

Funding Source(s): (O/M, Facilities, Capital, Reserve) 

Staff Recommendation (if applicable) 

(Attachments: RFP, Proposals, Invoicing, etc) 

Page 29



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

1 
 

FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 
(Montecito Clubhouse) 

 
 THIS FACILITY USE AGREEMENT , made and entered into 
this ____ day of __________________,  2024 , by and between:  

 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
local unit of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated in 
City of Satellite Beach, Brevard County, Florida, whose 
mailing address is 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach 
Gardens, Florida 33410  

 
and 

 
MONTECITO MASTER COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., 
a Florida not-for-profit corporation, whose address is 6972 
Lake Gloria Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32809, 
MONTECITO TOWNHOMES OF BREVARD 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-
profit corporation, whose address is 6972 Lake Gloria 
Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32809, and MONTECITO OF 
BREVARD HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida 
not-for-profit corporation, whose addresses are 6972 Lake 
Gloria Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32809 (collectively, the 

s  ), 
 

 WHEREAS, the Associations desire to use the clubhouse facility and certain 
furniture and equipment, at the Montecito Clubhouse property located at 208 Montecito 
Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida and owned by the District y  for Association 
meetings and community events; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to allow the Associations to use the Facility for 
the purpose of hosting the Association  meetings and community events under the 
terms provided herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has indicated a willingness to permit the Associations to 
use the Facility for the described purposes under certain specified conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Each Association agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the District 
in connection with its use of the Facility . 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein and the permission granted by the District to the Associations to use 

Page 30



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

2 
 

the District Facility for the purposes stated herein, the Associations and District agree 
as follows: 

 
 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement. 
 

2. Facility and Use.  The District does hereby grant use to the Associations 
and each Association does hereby accept and take, on a NON-EXCLUSIVE basis, the 
use of the Facility, located at 208 Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida to be used by 
the Associations solely for the purpose of hosting the Association  meetings or 
community events under the conditions set forth in this Agreement.   

 
2.1 Utilize the Facility.  The District hereby authorizes each Association to 

utilize the Facility as follows:   
 

2.1.1 Each Association may utilize those certain portions of the Facility 
for the purpose of hosting the Association s meetings or community events, including 
the main room, kitchen and bathrooms.    

 
2.1.2 The Facility may be utilized by each Association for the purpose of 

hosting the Association s meetings or community events by reserving the Facility in 
advance with the General Manager or District Manager.   

 
2.1.3. Each Association shall arrange access to the Facility for the use of 

the Facility with the General Manager, or in  absence, the District 
Manager, when an Association is using the Facility after normal business hours of the 
Facility.     

 
2.1.4 When an Association is utilizing the Facility for a community event, 

the community event shall be open to all Montecito residents and Non-Resident Users 
of the Facility and the Association hosting the event shall be the Renter as defined in 
the , 
and shall be the entity responsible for all aspects of the community event, including, but 
not limited to, security and safety, any damages to the Facility or which arise out of or 
are in any way connected to the event and which are incurred by the District, its officers, 
agents, and employees, any Members, Annual Members or their guests.   

 
2.2 Use of Facility Equipment.   The Associations may utilize the certain 

 
and community events as follows:      

 
2.2.1 kitchen appliances, provided that the Association 

utilizing the same is required to clean all such appliances prior to and after each use. 
 
2.2.2  The Associations are not allowed to use any other equipment 

Page 31



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

3 
 

owned by the District without the direct permission of the District Manager or General 
Manager. 

 
2.2.3 The Associations may use the Facility furnishings and move the 

furnishings in advance of a meeting or community event and shall return such 
furnishings to their original location immediately after each meeting or community event.   

 
2.3 Community Events.  Each Association may rent the Facility for community 

events, which rental shall be subject to the Section of the Rules, 
Center Clubhouse Room at the Amenity Center: Rental Policies  as amended by the 
District from time to time, except as specifically provided herein. An excerpt of this 
section of the Rules is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

 
2.3.1 The deposit and rental fees as set forth in the Rules are hereby 

waived.  This does not include any additional fees or costs incurred by the District for 
additional cleaning and damages to the Facility, furnishings, walls, equipment, 
appliances, or any other District property so affected as a result of the  
community event.  

 
2.3.2 The Association shall comply with the Rules, and specifically those 

provided in Exhibit A. 
 
2.3.3 Nothing herein shall prohibit the Association(s) from assessing or 

charging a fee to attendees to 
community event, provided that the fee is the same for all attendees. 

 
2.3.4 Should any fees or costs be owed to the District (as determined by 

the District) from an Association in connection with its use of the Facility, said 
Association shall be prohibited from using the Facility for future community events or 
Association meetings until such time as the amounts due the District are paid in full. 

 
2.3.5 For each community event, an authorized representative of the  

Association shall execute, on behalf of and with the authority of the Association, a 
Rental Room Application using the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
3. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 

continue through September 30, 2027, unless terminated by either party pursuant to 
Section 6 below.  Thereafter, the Agreement shall renew for periods of one (1) year 
each, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to Section 6 below. 

 
4. Conditions of Facility Use. 

 
4.1 Facility.  The Associations have each inspected the Facility and accept 

said Facility  at the time of entering this Agreement and throughout 
its term.  Each Association agrees that after each use of the Facility in accordance with 

Page 32



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

4 
 

this Agreement, the Association using the Facility will return the Facility to the District in 
a neat and sanitary condition, disposing of all garbage and waste in designated 
receptacles, and returning the Facility to its condition prior to the use by the Association.  
The Associations shall make no alterations, additions, improvements, or otherwise to 
the Facility without the express written consent of the District.   

 
4.2 Utilities.  District agrees to furnish reasonable electric, water, and sewer 

service, while the Associations are utilizing the Facility.  
 
4.3 Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Each Association agrees to conduct 

its respective activities upon the Facility in a manner so as to not endanger any person 
lawfully thereon and to, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, agents, 
and employees from and against all claims, suits, actions, damages, liabilities, 
expenditures, or causes of action of any kind arising out or in any way connected to any 
act, omission, or negligence of the respective Association, or its respective officers, 
agents, employees, or guests, and resulting in or relating to injuries to body, life, limb or 
property sustained in, about, or upon the permitted Facility or improvements thereto, or 
arising from the use of said Facility by each Association.  The Associations agree that 
this indemnification provision is applicable beginning on the Effective Date of this 
Agreement and that it shall survive the termination or expiration of the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
 4.5 Insurance.   Each Association shall furnish to the District, prior to its use 
of the Facility, a Certificate of Insurance showing General Liability/Public Liability and 
Property Damage Insurance of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits, and 
naming the Montecito Community Development District as an additional insured.  The 
proofs of insurance provided by the Associations are subject to the review and approval 
of District.  If requested by the District, each Association shall provide District with an 
updated Certificate of Insurance. 

   
  4.6 Compliance with laws, rules and regulations.  The Associations shall 
comply with all laws of the United States, and of the State of Florida, all ordinances of 
the City of Satellite Beach, all rules and requirements of the Police, Fire Departments, 
or other municipal authorities of the City of Satellite Beach, any other applicable local 
laws, ordinances and regulations and the Rules of the District (as defined above), will 
obtain and pay for all necessary permits and licenses,  and will not do, nor suffer to be 
done, anything on said Facility during the terms of this Agreement in violation of any 
such laws, ordinances, rules or requirements, and if the attention of an Association or 
the Associations is called to any such violation on the part of the Associations or any 
Association, or any person employed by or admitted to the Facility by an Association, 
said responsible Association or Associations will immediately desist from and correct 
the violation.   
 
 4.7 Non-discrimination. The District does not tolerate discrimination in any of 
its programs, services or activities. Pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

Page 33



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

5 
 

the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992 and 
other federal and state authorities, the Associations will not exclude from participation 
in, deny the benefits of, or subject to discrimination anyone on the grounds of race, 
color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, income or family status. 

  
5. General Provisions. 
 
5.1 Permission to Enter Property.  In accordance with direction provided by 

the General Manager or the District Manager, the Associations shall be permitted to 
enter the Facility to access the Facility when the Facility is open at any time during 
which this Agreement is effective for purposes of preparing for, hosting, and cleaning up 
after Association meetings or community events.  The Associations agree that the 
authorized representatives of the District may enter into the Facility at any given time to 
conduct District-related business.  Notwithstanding, the Associations agree that 
advertised meetings of the District Board of Supervisors shall not be interrupted or 
disturbed. 

 
 5.2 Evacuation.  The District reserves the right, without any liability therefor, to 
evacuate the Facility during any activity in progress where it is deemed, in the discretion 
of the District, the General Manager, the District Manager, or an authorized 
representative to be necessary for the safety of the general public, patrons, or guests. 
 
 5.3 This Agreement is Non-Exclusive.  The Associations understand and 
agree that during the term of this Agreement, other events, may be held in other parts of 
the Facility and the facilities in the area of the Facility, and it is understood and agreed 
that such other events can be held, serviced or moved in or out of the Facility during the 
term hereof even though they may cause inconvenience to the Associations.  The 
District will make every effort to minimize impact on the Associations  use of the Facility. 

 
 5.4 Inspection of Facility.  The Associations further represent that its 
representatives and agents have independently inspected the Facility and that the same 
are in proper condition for the uses contemplated in this Agreement.  
 
 5.5 Security.  The Associations acknowledge and understand that District 
bears no responsibility whatsoever, for negligence of the District, its officials, agents, or 
employees, for damages to person or property, arising out of the lack or insufficiency of 
security, safety measures, or protection from vandalism during the use of the Facility.  
Each Association shall be responsible for the security, safety, and protection of those 
attending Association meetings and community events. 
 
  5.6 Damages to Facility.  The Associations shall not damage said 
Facility, and will not make, nor allow to be made any alterations of any kind therein 
without the District  written permission.  Following the use of the Facility, the 
Associations shall return the Facility to the condition the Facility  prior to Associations  
use of the Facility.  Any damage whatsoever occurring as a result of a breach of this 

Page 34



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

6 
 

provision shall be the responsibility of the Associations. 
 

6. Termination or Cancellation. 
 

 6.1 District shall have the right to terminate and rescind this Agreement in its 
entirety or in part at the option and discretion of the District: (1) for any reason 
whatsoever upon the providing of at least thirty (30) days  notice to an Association or 
the Associations.  
 
 6.2 Each Association shall have the right to terminate and rescind this 
Agreement in its entirety or in part at the option and discretion of the Association(s) for 
any reason whatsoever upon the providing of at least thirty (30) days  notice to District. 

 
 6.3 The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve the Associations or any 
Association, individually, of any liabilities or obligations hereunder which shall have 
accrued prior to the effective date of cancellation or rescission. 
 

7.  Public Records. 
 
7.1. Associations shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, 

Florida Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and 
specifically shall: 

 
A. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to 

perform the services or work set forth in this Agreement; and 
 
B. 

provide the District with a copy of the requested records or 
allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise 
provided by law; and 

 
C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential 

and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are 
not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 
the Agreement term and following completion of the 
Agreement if the Associations do not transfer the records to 
the District; and 

 
D. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to 

the District, all public records in possession of an 
Association or keep and maintain public records required by 
the District to perform the service or work provided for in this 
Agreement.  If an Association transfers all public records to 

Page 35



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

7 
 

the District upon completion of the Agreement, the 
Association shall destroy any duplicate public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public disclosure 
requirements. If the Association keeps and maintains public 
records upon completion of the Agreement, the Association 
shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records.  All records stored electronically must be provided 

n of 
public records, in a format that is compatible with the 
information technology systems of the District. 

 
7.2. Each Association acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy 

public records relating to this Agreement must be made directly to the District pursuant 
to Section 119.0701(3), Florida Statutes.  If notified by the District of a public records 
request for records not in the possession of the District but in possession of an 
Association, the Association shall provide such records to the District or allow the 
records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time.  Each Association 
acknowledges that should Association fail to provide the public records to the District 
within a reasonable time, Association may be subject to penalties pursuant to Section 
119.10, Florida Statutes.   
 

7.3. IF AN ASSOCIATION HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING 
THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE ASSOCIATION
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE ASSOCIATIONS MAY 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR THE 
DISTRICT AT: 
 

SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC. 
2501A BURNS ROAD 
PALM BEACH GARDENS, FL 33410 
TELEPHONE: (561) 630-4922 

 EMAIL: BBARBA@SDSINC.ORG 
 
8. Assignment Prohibited. This Agreement shall not be assigned, sublet, 

sold, made a part of a merger, takeover, or sale of a business, or otherwise transferred 
in any manner whatsoever, by any party, without the prior written consent of the other 
parties endorsed thereon. 

 
9. Notice.   Any notice required or permitted to be given or served by either 

party to this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given or served when made in 

Page 36



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

8 
 

writing, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by hand delivery, and addressed 
as follows: 

 
As to ASSOCIATIONS: 
 
Montecito Master Community Association, Inc. 
6972 Lake Gloria Blvd 
Orlando, Florida 32809 
Attention:  President 
 
Montecito of Brevard Homeowners Association, Inc. 
6972 Lake Gloria Blvd 
Orlando, Florida 32809 
Attention:  President 
 
Montecito Townhomes of Brevard Homeowners Association, Inc. 
6972 Lake Gloria Blvd 
Orlando, Florida 32809 
Attention:  President 
 
As to DISTRICT: 
 
Montecito Community Development District 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
Attn: District Manager 
 
With copy to: 
 
Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
515 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 600 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
Attn: Michael J. Pawelczyk, Esq. 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed 
received only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered 
after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day shall be deemed 
received on the next business day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this 
Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be 
extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays 
recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other 
parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be 
sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees 
set forth in this Agreement. 

Page 37



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

9 
 

 
10. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the 

laws of the State of Florida, with venue, for purposes of any litigation, lying in Brevard 
County, Florida. 
 

11. Entire Agreement.  That all terms and conditions of this written 
Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their heirs or representatives, and assigns, 
and cannot be varied or waived by any oral representations or promise of any agent or 
other person of the parties hereto, unless the same be in writing and mutually signed by 
the duly authorized agent or agents who execute this Agreement. 
 

12. Waiver.  No waiver of any covenant or condition or the breach of any 
covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be taken to constitute a waiver of any 
subsequent breach of any covenant or condition of this Agreement.    
 
 13. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed 
to be or shall in fact be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in 
any jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all cases because of conflicts with any provision(s) 
hereof or any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule, or law or public policy, or for any 
reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in 
question inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever.  The invalidity of any one 
or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections contained in this Agreement shall not 
affect the remaining portion of this Agreement or any part thereof. 
 
 
  
 IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals 
the day and year first written above. 
 
ATTEST:      MONTECITO COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
By:_____________________________          
     Frank Sakuma, Secretary   Catherine LeCesne, Chairman    
      
 

                 day of _________, 2024 

Page 38



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

10 
 

 
WITNESSES:     MONTECITO MASTER COMMUNITY 

ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
__________________________   By:________________________ 
 
Print Name:________________   Name: _______________________ 

Title:________________________ 
__________________________     
 
Print Name:________________          
 
(CORPORATE SEAL)    _____ day of _____________, 2024 
 
 
WITNESSES:     MONTECITO OF BREVARD 

COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
__________________________   By:________________________ 
 
Print Name:________________   Name: _______________________ 

Title:________________________ 
__________________________     
 
Print Name:________________          
 
(CORPORATE SEAL)    _____ day of _____________, 2024 
 
WITNESSES:     MONTECITO TOWNHOMES OF 

BREVARD COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION, INC. 

 
__________________________   By:________________________ 
 
Print Name:________________   Name: _______________________ 

Title:________________________ 
__________________________     
 
Print Name:________________          
 
(CORPORATE SEAL)    _____ day of _____________, 2024   
 

Page 39



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

11 
 

Exhibit A 
Excerpt of Rules 

 
AMENITY CENTER CLUBHOUSE ROOM AT THE AMENITY CENTER:  

RENTAL POLICIES 
 
Residents and Non-Resident Users may reserve the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room through the 

event.  The five (5) hour limitation can only be exceeded upon specific authorization from the Board.  
Patrons may not reserve the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room more than four (4) times in any twelve 
(12) month period.  The maximum number of persons attending any event shall not exceed seventy-five 
(75) persons.  Reservation of the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room is on a first come, first serve basis and 

Center Clubhouse Room, the Amenity Manager will determine if a paid attendant will be necessary.  If an 
attendant is necessary, the party requesting the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room will be required to pay 
the costs associated with the attendant.  The Amenity Center Clubhouse Room will not be available for 
rental on the following days: 
  

December 24th     December 25th  Thanksgiving Day  
 December 31st    January 1st  
 Easter Sunday    July 4th  
 Memorial Day    Labor Day 
  
The Amenity Center Clubhouse Room is not available for rentals during Memorial Day Weekend, Labor 
Day Weekend or any other weekend on which a federal holiday falls on either a Monday or Friday. 
 
The Montecito pool and pool area (including the surrounding decks and furniture), fitness training room, 
game room, and playground are not available for reservation and shall remain open to all Patrons and 
their Guests during normal operating hours. 
 
A refundable deposit in the amount established by District rule is required and will be returned after the 
function is complete provided there is no evidence of damage to the facility.   
 
A cleanup fee in the amount established by District may be required depending on the function. The 
Amenity Manager should be contacted to make proper arrangements regarding the reservation of the 
Amenity Center Clubhouse Room and to obtain the amounts of the deposit and cleanup fee. 
 
No open or burning flames or campfires are allowed at the Amenity Facilities. 
 
Below are the policies and guidelines set forth and agreed upon by the Board and District Manager 
regarding events in the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room: 
 
Policies 
 
(1) Applicant must be a Patron who will be responsible for ensuring that their Guests adhere to the 

policies set forth herein.  
(2) All applicants will be required to fill out and sign the Amenity Center Rental Room Application 

as approved by the Amenity Manager or District Manager. 

Page 40



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

12 
 

(3) Additional Event Liability Insurance coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
will be required for all events that are approved to serve alcoholic beverages.  This policy 
regarding insurance coverage also pertains to certain events the District determines should require 
additional Event Liability coverage on a case by case basis (to be reviewed by the District 
Manager or the Board of Supervisors). The District shall be named as an additional insured party 
on any such policies, and a certificate of insurance illustrating the appropriate coverage amount 
and parties is to be provided to the District Manager prior to the event.   

 
Schedule of Fees/Deposits 
 
(1) A non-refundable room rental fee for the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room will be charged as 

follows:  $50.00 for up to 25 guests, $100.00 for 26 through 50 guests, and $150.00 for 51 
through 75 guests  (as stated 
conveyed to the Amenity Manager no later than five (5) days before the date of the scheduled 
event.  In absence of a final guarantee, the number indicated on the original application will be 
c

 
  
(2) A refundable security deposit of $400.00 (or $500.00 with events including preauthorized alcohol 

check or money order. (which shall b
 

 
1. Ensure that all garbage is removed and placed in the appropriate trash bins. 
2. Remove all displays, favors, or remnants of the event. (No adhesives are permitted on 

walls or windows.) 
3. Wipe off and restore the furniture and other items to their original position. 
4. Wipe off counters, table tops, and sink area. 
5. Ensure that no damage has occurred to the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room and its 

surrounding property and facilities if used by Patron and their Guests. 
 

If additional cleaning is required, the Patron reserving the room will be liable for any expenses incurred 
by the District to hire an outside cleaning contractor.  In light of the foregoing, Patrons may opt to pay for 
the actual cost of cleaning by a professional cleaning service hired by the District.  Note: The District 
Manager shall determine the amount of the deposit or a portion thereof to be returned, if any.  Any 
damages to District Property, including but limited the Amenity Facility and the furniture, equipment, and 
appurtenances of the Amenity Facility, shall be the responsibility of the Patron who signed the Amenity 
Center Rental Room Application, even if said damages exceed any deposit posted with the rental. 
 
Indemnification 
 
Each organization, group or individual reserving the use of an Amenity Facility (or any part thereof) 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, agents, contractors and employees from 
any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity, for 
injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use of the District 
lands, premises and/or Amenity Facilities, including litigation or any appellate proceeding with respect 

granted pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

Page 41



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

13 
 

Exhibit B 
Montecito Amenity Center Rental Room Application (Associations) 

Page 42



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

14 
 

MONTECITO AMENITY CENTER RENTAL ROOM APPLICATION (Associations) 
 

Association Name:___________________________  ______________________________ 
Street Address: ___________________________________________________ ___  _____________________________________ 
Name and Daytime Phone of contact person:________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Intended Use: Estimated Attendance_ __________________________________ 
Date of Event: ______________ Time (5hr max.)_______ to _______ 
RENTAL COST (Non-Refundable) FEE AMOUNT $50.00, $100.00 or $150.00  CHECK #________   
RENTAL DEPOSIT COST  FEE AMOUNT $400.00     CHECK #________   
RENTAL DEPOSIT w/ ALCOHOL FEE AMOUNT $500.00     CHECK #________   
Association agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Montecito Community Development District, and its agents, 
supervisors, officers, directors, employees, and staff from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, or demands by any 
person, corporation, or other entity, for liability, claims, actions, suits, or demands by any person, corporation, or other 
entity for injuries, death, property damage of any nature arising out of or in connection with the use of the Amenity 

rsuant 
to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
I have read, understand, and agree to abide by all policies and rules of the District governing the Amenity Center.  

ion of any privileges to use the 
facility.  Association also understands that it is financially responsible for any damages caused by Association, its officers, 
employees, and its guests.  If requested, Association will obtain an event insurance policy naming the Montecito 
Community Development District, and their agents, supervisors, officers, directors, employees, and staff as additional 
insured. 
 
____________________________________________________  _____________________ 
Signature of Authorized User (on behalf of Association)    Date 

 
Please initial by each: 
 
1.______ There is a maximum Capacity of 76 for the Montecito Amenity Center Room (75 attendees, plus a paid 

attendant if necessary).  Residents must inform their guests that once the scheduled party is completed, all 
guests are requested to exit. 

 
2.______ The rental fee is Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for up to 25 guests, One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for 26 through 50 

guests, and One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00) for 51 through 75 guests.  Checks need to be made payable to 
MONTECITO CDD. 

 
3.______   All fees and deposits are required to be paid seven (7) days prior to the event. 
 
4.______ The five (5) hour maximum time limit includes setup and cleanup time.  Please schedule accordingly. 
 
5.______ The five (5) hour maximum time limit applies to all guests in attendance.  Once party is complete, all guests 

are required to exit.  Standard guest policy applies outside scheduled reservation. 
 
6.______ No adhesives, including tape, are permitted on the walls, windows, woodwork, or furniture of the Amenity 

Center.  Any resulting damage whatsoever to the walls, windows, woodwork, or furniture of the Amenity 
Center shall be the responsibility of the Renter.  

 
7.______ No wet bathing suits, towels, or clothing is allowed in the rental room or on the furniture. 
 
8.______ A refundable security deposit in the amount of Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) shall be provided for the 

Montecito Amenity Center Room, made payable to MONTECITO CDD.  If alcohol is authorized, a refundable 
security deposit in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) shall be provided for the Montecito Amenity 
Center Room. 

 

Page 43



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 02-28-2024 

15 
 

9.______ All deposit and Fee checks will be deposited prior to event. The refund check will be processed within 7 to 10 
business days after a complete clean-up inspection by District Staff has taken place without incident. 

 
Circle -   Yes or No Is alcohol being served at your party? (Additional insurance coverage is required if alcohol is 

going to be provided, and approval by the District Manager is required.) 
 
10.______ Additional fees may be assessed if the cleanup is incomplete or if event is not kept within the identified times. 
 
11.______  
 
Circle -   Yes or No  Are there any outside vendors being hired for your event?  If yes, please furnish the 

Management Office with the proper Certificate of Insurance naming the Montecito Community Development 
District as additionally insured. 

 
12.______  I have read and understand the Amenity Center Rental Policies. 
 
13.______  Game room and pool are not included as part of the Montecito Center Room rental.  
 
14.______  In accordance with the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees of the Montecito Amenity Center, any unscheduled 

events or parties held in the Montecito Amenity Center Room without prior written approval of the District 
shall be a violation of said rules and may result in a suspension of Amenity Center privileges in accordance 
with said rules.  

 
15.______  Event insurance is required if alcohol is being served.  Insurance can be obtained through a provider of your 

choice or through www.Theeventhelper.com  

 
 
 

 
 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



MONTECITO CDD 

 
Date: March 13, 2024 

Subject: GMS Ticket System  Upload to Website 

  

  

Person Making Request (Board Supervisor, Homeowner, Staff, Vendor): Staff 

Requested Board Action: Consideration of having the prior ticket system  installed on 
the Montecito CDD website. 

Why Request/Change Required (Background Information): Board has asked for 
information about having the prior system installed on the website. 

Does this impact Governmental requirements? (If so, explain): No. 

What is changing from the baseline or previously approved Board action? 

 Describe old item/process: Vesta ticket system  expiring on 3/15/2024 

 Describe new item/process: If directed by the Board, the prior ticket system will be 
uploaded to the District website. 

What will this change help save or avoid?  

COST: 

 Non-Recurring Cost/Expenses (one time): $75/hr for the web consultant to upload 
the prior system. Estimate is for 2-3 billable hours.  

 Recurring Cost (ongoing/maintenance/etc.): None, unless the Board makes 
modifications or changes. Then will depend on consultant costs at that time. 

Funding Source(s): (O/M, Facilities, Capital, Reserve) O/M 

Staff Recommendation (if applicable) n/a 

Page 58



MONTECITO CDD 

 
Date: March 13, 2024 

Subject: SLOW Children Playing  Signs 

  

  

Person Making Request (Board Supervisor, Homeowner, Staff, Vendor): Board Direction 

Requested Board Action: Approval of Paradise Signs proposal for manufacture and 
placement of two signs. 

Why Request/Change Required (Background Information): To reduce motorist speed 
within the District. 

Does this impact Governmental requirements? (If so, explain): No. 

What is changing from the baseline or previously approved Board action? 

 Describe old item/process: n/a 

 Describe new item/process: Signs installed may reduce speed of motorists. 

What will this change help save or avoid? Avoid accidents. 

COST: 

 Non-Recurring Cost/Expenses (one time): $598.50 

 Recurring Cost (ongoing/maintenance/etc.): Unknown, may require occasional 
cleaning. 

Funding Source(s): (O/M, Facilities, Capital, Reserve) O/M 

Staff Recommendation (if applicable)  

(Attachments: RFP, Proposals, Invoicing, etc) 

Page 59



1 

RESOLUTION 2024-05 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AMENDING THE ADOPTED RULES, 
POLICIES, AND FEES FOR THE MONTECITO AMENITY 
CENTER TO REPLACE THE TERM, “AMENITY 
MANAGER” WITH “GENERAL MANAGER”; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Montecito Community Development District (hereinafter the "District") 
is a local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes, being situated in the City of Satellite Beach, Brevard County, Florida; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates, an maintains certain lands and recreational 
amenity facilities within the boundaries of the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2015, pursuant to Resolution 2015-05 the District Board of 
Supervisors approved the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center, 
which Rules were subsequently amended on October 29, 2018, pursuant to Resolution 2019-01 
(collectively, the “Rules”), which Rules pertain and govern the use of the District’s lands and 
recreational facilities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 120.54, 120.81, 190.011(5), and 190.035(2), Florida 
Statutes, the District is authorized to adopt and modify rules prescribing the conduct of the 
business of the District, the operation and maintenance of the District lands and facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Rules utilize the term “Amenity Manager” for the position of General 
Manager, and for purposes of consistency and clarity, the Board of Supervisors has determined 
that the term “Amenity Manager” should be replaced with “General Manager” throughout the 
Rules; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board finds and determines that this minor Rule amendment does not 
change the purpose or content of any of the Rules, and therefore does not require a public 
hearing or separate notices required by Sections 120.54 or 120.81, Florida Statutes; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board has further determined to incorporate the changes provided 
herein into an updated version of the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito 
Amenity Center that is made available to and accessible by residents, members, annual members, 
and the public.  

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

Page 60



 2

 
Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated in and adopted 

as part of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2.  Each reference to the term, “Amenity Manager” shall be replaced with the 

term “General Manager” throughout the Rules.   
  

Section 3. Direction to District Counsel.  District Counsel is directed to incorporate 
the amendments, changes, revisions, additions and deletions provided herein to create an updated 
version of the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center, and to 
circulate the same to the District Manager. 

 
Section 4. Direction to District Manager.  The District Manager is hereby directed to 

take all actions consistent with this Resolution.  The District Manager shall include this adopted 
Resolution as part of the Official Records of Proceeding of the District, distribute the Rules as 
appropriate to affected parties and in accordance with Chapters 120 and 190, Florida Statutes, 
and post the Rules, as updated pursuant to this Resolution, on the District’s website. 

 
Section 5. Conflicts.  All motions, resolutions or parts of motions or resolutions in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.   
 
 Section 6. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this 
Resolution shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared 
that the remainder of this Resolution would have been adopted despite the invalidity or 
ineffectiveness of such section, paragraph, clause or provision. 
 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED in Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of the 

Montecito Community Development District, this 13th day of March, 2024 (the “Effective 
Date”). 

      MONTECITO COMMUNITY 
Attest:      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

 
              
Frank Sakuma, Secretary   Catherine LeCesne, Chairperson 
      Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Page 61



MONTECITO CDD 

 
Date: March 13, 2024 

Subject: Weatherproof Bulletin Board 

  

  

 

Person Making Request (Board Supervisor, Homeowner, Staff, Vendor): Staff 

Requested Board Action: Approve purchase of 2 outdoor weatherproof  bulletin boards. 

Why Request/Change Required (Background Information): Replaces initial boards 
purchased under Board approval. Those boards were windproof , not weatherproof . 
Those boards were returned for a full refund. ($225.99) 

Does this impact Governmental requirements? (If so, explain): n/a 

What is changing from the baseline or previously approved Board action? 

 Describe old item/process: No bulletin boards. 

 Describe new item/process: 2 bulletin boards. 

What will this change help save or avoid? 

COST: 

 Non-Recurring Cost/Expenses (one time): $331.98 (as of 3/6/2024) 

 Recurring Cost (ongoing/maintenance/etc.): minimal, cleaning. 

Funding Source(s): (O/M, Facilities, Capital, Reserve) O/M 

Staff Recommendation (if applicable)  

(Attachments: RFP, Proposals, Invoicing, etc) 

Page 62



Page 63



 
 

 GM-04 
08/2021 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT MONTECITO CDD 
  
 

Informational/Action Items completed: 
 

1. General Admin, Maintenance, and repairs 
a. The following items were addressed/ scheduled/ repaired: 

i. Pedestrian Gate Installs and Repairs completed.   
ii. Pool Pump replaced. 

iii. New Well meter scheduled for installation.  
iv. No parking signs reviewed for updates and location change. 
v. Received Bid for Children at play signs.   

vi. Completed monthly emergency light check in the clubhouse. 
vii. Repaired women’s restrooms door on pool deck and replaced both 

locks.    
viii. Replaced Flag on Flagpole at clubhouse.  

ix. Annual Fire inspection for Clubhouse completed.   
x. Game Room Rules Sign Hung on Wall for display. 

xi. Water Meter reading completed and sent to district engineer.   
xii. Gym Rules sign rehung for display.   

xiii. Gym Equipment Deep Cleaned.  
xiv. Weekly landscaping meeting completed.   

 
  
2. Vesta Ticket system –  

a. All work orders answered and actioned as needed.  
b. Ticket report included in GM weekly report.  
c.    How to guide located under resources on website.  

3. Parking Violations – Records. 
a.   Violations are updated weekly, printed, and placed in binder for recording 

purposes.   
4. Pictures of violations are stored in “car violations” folder and stored on drive. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 64



 Montecito
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
February 2024

Page 65



Page 66



Field Management Subtotal 

Amenity Center Operations Subtotal

Irrigation Subtotal

Stormwater Control Subtotal

Page 67



EXPENDITURES

Landscaping Subtotal

Commons Areas, Right of Ways & Perimeter Walls Subtotal

Security Monitoring Services Subtotal

Utilities Subtotal

Other Subtotal

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78


	Montecito Community Development District - March 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book 
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 14, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Amend Amenity Center Rules – Temporary Access

	ProGreen
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-04 – Declaring Surplus – Sportsman Generator
	Coordination with Architectural Review Board – Temporary Access Easements
	Consider Approval of Facility Use Agreement – Montecito Clubhouse
	Discussion Regarding Mail Kiosk Agreement
	Discussion Regarding Prior Ticket System
	Consider Approval of Paradise Signs Proposal
	Consider Resolution 2024-05 – Amending Amenity Center Rules by Replacing the Term “Amenity Manager” with “General Manager”
	Consider Approval of the Purchase of 2 Outdoor Weatherproof Bulletin Boards
	General Manager’s Report
	Financials




